








24 April 2023  Page | 1

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 
By Fire Chief Freitag 

I’ve spent the past month meeting with community leaders and elected officials regarding the proposed 
tax increase for next fiscal year. In the meetings, I’ve explained the challenges we face with staffing as 
highlighted by our increased ISO rate, our proposed solution, and the estimated cost. I’ve been pointing 
out that what we’ve proposed is a three-year plan that would increase rates each year for the next three 
fiscal years. The numbers we discussed were framed as the worst-case scenario i.e., if we do not receive 
the SAFER Grants. As part of each conversation, I discussed our need to seek a GO bond sometime in 
2026 or 2027 for infrastructure. I’ve asked each person I spoke with for their thoughts or any alternate 
solutions they may be able to offer.  

The folks I talked with understand our situation and recognize that with only one source of revenue our 
options are limited. While no one is ever thrilled about a tax increase, we have received support for the 
plan we’ve proposed.  

We understand that the proposed three-year plan may change based on how the board feels about the 
budget draft this year, and whatever realities we face the following two fiscal years. One thing we know 
for sure is that our funding opportunities will remain limited while our area continues to grow.  

I spoke with a developer last Thursday and spoke with the Town on Friday. There are some significant 
plans for development over the next few years. If growth occurs at the projected rate, we will need two 
engines not one in the next three to four years. This also means we will need two stations, not just the 
one we’ve been discussing. While there is no guarantee that the proposed developments will move 
forward in the time frames proposed, its good for us to have a heads up so we can start planning now.  

Last week I spoke with Senator Kelly’s, Senator Sinema’s, and Representatives Crane’s respective staffs 
regarding support for our SAFER Grant. Each will be putting together letters of support. In addition, 
Senator Kelly’s staff reach out to Prescott National Forest’s (PNF) staff and asked that they develop a 
letter of support as well. I sent a sample letter to PNF last week. I met with Representative Nguyen 
Friday morning and spoke with Representative Bliss Friday afternoon. They are crafting a joint letter of 
support for our grant application that will be done this week.  

Scottsdale Fire Chief Tom Shannon, Buckeye Fire Chief Jake Rhoades, and I met with the new Director of 
DFFM Tom Torres last week at his office. This was a great meet and greet opportunity, and a good time 
for us to discuss wildfire concerns in the state. We also discussed how we can help support the new 
director and DFFM as they seek increased funding for wildfires in Arizona. Currently the state only 
budgets $3 million a year for wildfires, which we know is woefully inadequate.  

The legislature passed the technical correction bill last week that clarifies fire authorities are eligible for 
a portion of the marijuana tax. As you may recall, an attorney in the State Treasurer’s office had said we 
were not eligible because the law when passed did not specifically mention fire authorities. While we 
disagreed with his interpretation, there was not much we could do at the time. Fortunately, the State 



24 April 2023  Page | 2

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Treasurer had a different interpretation that allowed us to receive the monies until a technical 
correction could be made. The bill has been signed by the Governor.  

Our crews had a 2-alarm structure fire on Tuesday, April 11. The fire threatened three surrounding 
homes, multiple out buildings, an RV, and several cars. Crews did an outstanding job in less-than-ideal 
conditions minimizing the damage to the three surrounding homes. The home of origin was 100% 
involved on arrival and was a total loss. Lack of fire hydrants in the area did create some additional work 
as crews had to lay over 700ft of large diameter hose (LDH) on one street to supply an engine, while 
crews on the other street had to lay 1800ft of LDH. For a frame of reference, each engine carries 1200ft 
of LDH.  

The town is working on adding hydrants in older parts of the community where hydrants were not 
initially installed. Unfortunately, some of the older water mains go through backyards and not along the 
street which is creating some challenges with access and easements.  

Our labor/management meetings are going well. Susanne has been taking minutes at the meetings 
which are then sent out to our personnel.   

  

  



24 April 2023  Page | 3

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 

We have been working diligently through the budget process and will be having our annual Budget 
Workshop with all three boards this month. While the workshop provides an opportunity for the board 
to look at the details of the budget, there are some very significant changes this year. We have 
budgeted for 7 new Firefighters to be hired in the organization and 8 new Firefighters to be hired 
through the SAFER (Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response) Grant – which will cover 75% of 
personnel costs base wages plus FLSA OT, additional assignment pay (CEP, TRT, etc.) and EREs but will 
not cover any overtime or other costs. We have budgeted for the Community Relations Division and two 
additional Tech Services personnel to address our ever-increasing needs with the technology, software 
and communications. We have included a significant increase to paramedic assignment pay (and the 
affected EREs) and doubling CAFMA’s contributions to everyone’s PEHP (Post Employment Health Plan) 
accounts from 1% to 2% of gross earnings. Additionally, we budgeted $200,000 for Capital replacement, 
though this is minor in comparison to the needed $7 million we should be adding to our Capital Reserve 
Account, but we have a plan and are moving the needle in the right direction. We also added about $1.1 
million in operating expenses for fuel, maintenance, PSPRS (yes, we doubled our unfunded liability in 
one year again), insurances and programs. Overall, we had about $2.1 million to work with under the 
NAV increase and new construction with the existing tax rate, but the budget increases are pushing us 
closer to $3.1 million, so that means a significant Tax Rate increase. To accomplish all we deem 
necessary and strategically imperative, we will be looking at a 10-cent increase to the CYFD and a 3-cent 
increase to the CVFD. This falls in line with the 80/20 split of expenses that we have tried to maintain 
over the years, but as the CYFD area continues to grow and demand more service, this trend will slowly 
shift towards a 90/10 split. I am sure there will be additional drafts of the budget (we are on version 8 
now) as we continue to work with out board, leaders and union towards the Fiscal Year 2024. 

Another project that is progressing (but slowly) is our ARPA (America Rescue Plan Act) federal 
funding of our COVID related expenses. Though we were allocated $20 million for fire districts, and this 
was primarily accomplished with a focus to cover the significant monetary increases to our Worker’s 
Compensation claims and premiums with an assessment for the end of plan year 2023, we have not had 
any distributions to date. We have looked to apply pressure to the Insurance Commission of Arizona 
(ICA) and the governing authority of the ARPA distribution in Arizona, but because of how the CARES 
Funding and ARPA funding was distributed to Counties, Towns, Cities, Schools and others – without any 
real accountability, and those agencies are now being audited, the oversight have now restricted the 
process to a standstill. Our Workers Compensation Pool, in conjunction with other lobbyists and 
organizations, are working to free up those funds for our fire districts. We hope to have a distribution 
before the end of the fiscal year.   

Have a great Spring and be safe! 
  



24 April 2023  Page | 4

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

March 2023 
RECORDS REQUESTS 

Record Type Received Pending

EMS 3 0

Environmental 3 0

Fire 2 0

Incident 0 0

Public Record 1 0

Totals 9 0

 



24 April 2023  Page | 5

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Feddema 

The calls for service have remained steady and we continue to monitor response times, engine 
reliability, along with the call volume each month. We are working with the City of Prescott for a move-
up module to help improve efficiencies in our move-up policy. When we see our engine reliability go 
down, we typically start to see an increase in our average response times. Our goal is to ensure we are 
meeting the needs of a growing community now and into the future. The increase in call volume 
continues to challenge ambulance response times. We continue to work on our goal to find a long-term 
solution; however, CAFMA crews have done a great job supporting the community with the Rescues. 
This is an added burden, but they have done a great job working through the challenge.  

There have been several meetings this month related to our upcoming wildland fire season. We had a 
very wet winter season which is very good, and we will continue to monitor the conditions as we move 
into the summer months. There was a coordination meeting with local partner agencies to ensure 
interoperability. This meeting was held at CARTA and included members of CAFMA, the Prescott 
National Forest, and the Department of Forestry and Fire Management. As CAFMA continues to grow, 
we are seeing more construction in the wildland urban interface. Each year we prepare for the wildland 
season with equipment, training, and physical fitness tests. Will we continue to work towards educating 
the public to try and reduce the number of starts. This is a challenge that we will engage in every year.   

 



24 April 2023  Page | 6

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EMS Report 
By EMS Chief Niemynski 

CAFMA transported 9 patients in our Rescues during the month of March 2023.  The total number of 
Rescue transports from 7/1/21 – 4/11/2023 equals 312 times.  CAFMA continues to send in our 
paramedics on BLS ambulances.  As of 4/11/2023 we have sent in a paramedic over 3240 times to 
support a BLS ambulance from AMR and a small number of Priority ambulances since 7/1/2021.  This is 
something we will continue to do as it is what is best for our citizens.  

On April 10th we began running our co-staffed Rescues with Priority EMTs and CAFMA medics on Rescue 
58 and Rescue 62.  There has been a bit of a learning curve, but everyone seems to like having the units 
available 24/7 to respond.  PRCC is struggling getting these units assigned as closest unit and we 
continue to work to rectify this issue.   

AZDHS has given each region a $100,000 grant towards sending people to EMT or paramedic class.  In 
the Northern Region we identified the need is overwhelming for paramedics.  CAFMA will put in for a 
portion of this educational funding.  We hope to send 6 students to the August paramedic class at 
Yavapai College.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 April 2023  Page | 7

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Rose 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

This past month has been packed with interesting meetings and events, including Emergency 
Management’s Pre-Season Cooperator’s Meeting, Prescott Valley Police’s Badges and Bobbers, the 
Firefighter Angel Pancake Breakfast, and the Quarterly Prescott Valley Chamber Breakfast. I’ll also 
participate in Fire Ops 101 and attend the Social Media Strategies Summit for First Responders this 
month.  
 
Press releases, the CAFMA Connect podcast, and radio appearances continue, and include a live 
segment with Fire Chief Freitag and Leza Lachapelle Dandos on KYCA’s Leza Live, where the topics 
ranged from wildland fires to firefighter recruitment. 
 
Captain Nick Fournier said “Yes!” In what was a complete surprise to the crew of Engine 50 C-Shift, the 
Boys and Girls Clubs of Central Arizona (BGCCAZ) invited Captain Fournier to be one of the celebrity 
dancers for Dancing for the Stars, an annual fundraiser for BGCCAZ. The event will take place August 25th 
and 26th, 2023, so be on the lookout for behind-the-scenes content on our social media platforms and 
visit https://dancingforthestars.net/ for info and to vote for #TeamPV! 

We’re currently hiring for a Human Resources Specialist I, so be sure to follow CAFMA on social media 
and share the posts to spread the word to a wider audience. 
FACILITIES 

The work continues at Station 50 doing some freshening up of the painting. We are fitting it in as we 
have time. Seems we keep finding additional areas that need some freshening up.  Been nice having a 
light duty guy to help us out with it.  

Station 63 bay heaters and new exhaust filtration system has been completed. The crews were able to 
get the areas cleaned up that the new buildout will be taking place in. We plan to start on it the week of 
4/17. 

CARTA back hill has been restored back to its original configuration along with the addition of a 24” 
culvert in the detention pond to keep the stagnant water from collecting for long periods of time during 
the monsoon season.   

The Spruce Mountain generator is scheduled to be completed the week of May 15th. We are in hopes 
that all goes smoothly with it. The plan is still to take the old generator to fleet to give them an 
opportunity to go through it and makes sure everything is up to par before we install it out to Station 63.  

 



24 April 2023  Page | 8

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We continue to work toward replacing bay bulbs with LED ones as time and money allows. We have 
already completed 53 and 50 and have the bulbs to do 58 and 59 next. Andrew will work on that as we 
get into our budget freeze.  

We have had some water issues at Admin during the last couple of heavy storms that we decided 
needed to be addressed ASAP. We will be recoating the back of the building along with replacing all the 
caulking around the windows and in the expansion joints which seems to be failing. In addition, we will 
be doing a little roof sealing, fresh paint on curbs, painting of bollards, and some freshening up of the 
DG in areas that could use some.  

Station 53 will be due for the next generator upgrade. In preparation for that we will be taking some 
time to sort through all the electric in the multiple panels that has been installed there over the years. 
Currently the generator is only able to power about half the station. As part of the upgrade, we will be 
consolidating and purchasing a generator that will be able to accommodate all the station electric during 
power outages.  

With the warmer weather returning, Andrew has been making his rounds to get the coolers back up and 
running for the summer months.  

Coming up as well is this year’s asphalt sealing. We will be doing all the locations in the next month. In 
addition, there is some small repairs needed prior down at 54 along with the concrete parking blocks at 
Admin that need to be replaced.  

As always, the routine maintenance is ongoing, but in addition we have had about 240 work orders 
come in since July 1st that have been resolved.  

 

FLEET 

Projects:   

NEW TYPE 1 ENGINES:  

The new pumpers arrived in Az the end of March. There were a few issues that needed to be taken care 
of by our dealer, Hughes Fire. Once those issues are addressed the trucks will be driven to our fleet 
shop. As of today 4-13-23, the first of the three engines have arrived at Fleet. Once at Fleet the 
mechanics will fabricate brackets and such to mount all of the equipment that goes on the truck. Tech 
Services will install MDT, radio equipment and the David Clark headset system. Outfitting a new engine 
usually takes a couple months, these are a new builder for us, so we will see how long they take. Our 
goal in fleet is to have at least two mechanics performing in-service work at all times until completion.  

  



24 April 2023  Page | 9

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

STAFF VEHICLES:  

The four Chevrolet 1500 crew cabs approved last board meeting for Fire Prevention have been picked 
up and delivered to Fleet. We have ordered camper shells and slide out storage units for each truck. I 
will keep you updated as the progress continues.  

UTV:  

The new UTV has been completed and is in service at station 63 in Paulden.  

OPTICOM:  

This project is still in the works, with installation of the vehicle units each time a vehicle comes to fleet 
for service work. Fleet was able to perform the installs on both Rescue 58 and 62 before the Priority 
lease started.  

Maintenance and Repair: 

Fleet has been very busy catching up on services. Front line engines are caught up, and the wild land 
fleet has been in for services and or repairs. We still have a couple water tenders needing some field 
repairs and one type 3 that needs to come in for inspection. 

UPDATES:  

Ben Burchard our new mechanic has been on for a little over a month. He is doing great, and his skillset 
is higher than we had expected of a new hire. We look to put him on our On-call mechanic rotation by 
the end of April. 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 

Here are some updates for the board from Technical Services. This is not an exhaustive list, but 
highlights some of the active projects and activities we currently have in the pipeline. 

Priority / Rescue 58 and 62 - We have been working with Operations and PRCC on getting all technical 
aspects of the new Priority units running out of 58 and 62 including Telestaff, Mapping / MDTs, Radios, 
and modems. Special thanks to Kyle Runo for his assistance with the Telestaff side and Tony Frazier for 
his work on the modems / radios. We are now working on a plan to add an additional portable radio to 
each unit. 

Brush 53 – Dave Legge recently added some new wildland radios to Brush 53. We will be continuing to 
deploy these radios throughout our apparatus, better preparing them for both initial attack as well as 
off-district assignments. Thanks to Dave for his efforts in researching, procuring, and installing these 
radios. 

Yavapai County Prescott Jail – Dave Legge and Tony Frazier have been going over the final build 
documents for the new jail’s radio system. Once the system is delivered, they will be installing it. This is 
currently slated for May / June. 



24 April 2023  Page | 10

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Software Deployments – We are currently assisting with multiple software deployments, including 
PSTrax, SmartGov, and the Compliance Engine.  

Battery Upgrades – We have ordered new site batteries for battery backups for several of our sites. This 
is the first phase in a major battery replacement we will be doing across the agency. Thanks to Dave 
Legge and Tony Frazier for their work on this project. 

Station 61 Access Control – This was delayed due to weather. We are working with Facilities to 
reschedule. 

WAREHOUSE 

The Warehouse Division completed the flow testing on all SCBA packs. This process took several months 
to complete. We still need to do 4 RIT packs, which will complete the process for the year. In addition, a 
schedule was created to have all SCBA bottles hydro tested, keeping them in compliance. This will begin 
after July 1st. 

The Warehouse Division completed the annual ladder testing process. We had a few ladders needing 
repair, which we will take care of in house. All ladders on all apparatus have all passed inspection. We 
have scheduled the ladder testing process for 2024, for the end of March. 

The Warehouse Division has been working on completing the inventories on water tenders as well as 
our type 3 engines. This has been a long process; however, we feel we should be able to have them 
completed very soon. 

The Warehouse Division has distributed the new particulate hoods to our firefighting personnel. These 
hoods should significantly reduce the amount of the cancer-causing carcinogens around the head and 
neck area during a structure fire. Protocols have been put in place for the care and maintenance of 
these vital pieces of PPE. 

The Warehouse Division has received in our very much needed hose for our engines. This will allow us to 
begin our annual hose testing process for all apparatus. We anticipate starting this process by the 1st of 
May, with a targeted completion date of the end of October. 

 

As always, feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

Thank you, 

Cody Rose 

 



24 April 2023  Page | 11

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Parra 

We continue in April to host the Wildland Quarterly Training with the Prescott Fire Department as well 
as other surrounding agencies. The Training Officers have been doing an excellent job ensuring quality 
training while maintaining a safe environment. 

As spring moves in warmer weather and high winds play a crucial factor on local fire behavior. The Drop 
in training is designed to better prepare our crews when faced with wildland incidents. All the engine 
companies have completed their wildland refresher RT 130/190 and are preparing for what looks like a 
busy season. 

Other important training events that took place include annual Fire Ops 101, VFIS driver training and 
regional Basin OPS Drill. 

The Prescott Area Fire Training Group is hosted their 14th Annual Company Officer Academy which is 
designed to:  

Help set the standard for new Captains as they promote into rank 

Identify pitfalls they may fall into 

Have Chiefs and others share previously gained knowledge with candidates in round table 
discussions 

Make sure they have adequate knowledge of programs, tools and strategies 

Reinforce that becoming supervisors brings new legal responsibilities and the need to mentor 
and discipline personnel understanding they have the support of the organization. 

The company officer was a huge success with all local agencies attending. CAFMA sent 6 aspiring officers 
through this week-long academy.



24 April 2023  Page | 12

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 
By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 



MINUTES 
Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 27, 2023, 5:00 pm - 6:00 pm 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Administration, 8603 E. Eastridge Drive, Prescott Valley 

In Attendance 
Dave Tharp; Denise Krizo; Gayle Pickett; Lorette Stewart; Matt Zurcher; Nicolas Cornelius; Rick 

Anderson; Scott A Freitag; Susanne Dixson 

Not In Attendance 
Dave Dobbs 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

Chair Zurcher called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Zurcher led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESENTATIONS

A. County and Town Current Events Summaries

District 5 Supervisor Mary Mallory of the Yavapai County Board of Supervisors reported
that there is a Special Board meeting scheduled tomorrow regarding Yavapai County
Resolution 1967 requiring the Board to meet within five (5) days of an emergency. A
Declaration of Emergency was made regarding severe flooding that occured on March
24.

She added that the County will host the annual Free Slash Disposal program April 1,
2023 - June 1, 2023. Information can be found on their website.

Supervisor Mallory also detailed the progress of the Prescott East Highway Project. She
stated she would like to add sidewalks and will look into grants or County funding to
support that project.

She further reported on County wages, the progress of the County Detention Center,
communications challenges, Facility space and planning issues.

Town of Chino Valley Mayor Jack Miller updated the Board regarding upcoming
commercial projects, including a 40-acre recreational vehicle (RV) park, a new Circle K,
and the new Police Station which should be completed soon. He reported that there
were over 1,100 new housing permits submitted. He reported that Perkinsville Road has
washed out and an emergency will be declared in hopes it will provide some additional
funding for repairs. Additionally, the upcoming Town of Chino Valley Budget Retreat will
focus on capital improvements such as infrastructure and roadway improvements. He
added that two new Council members and a new Vice-Mayor were recently sworn in.

DRAFT
nts Summariesnts Su

ry Mallory of the Yavapai Countyory of the Yavapai County
l Board meeting scheduled tomoeting scheduled tomo

requiring the Board to meet withequiring the Board to m
f Emergency was made regardingf Emergency was made reg

added that the County will host tat the County will host t
023 023 - - June 1, 2023. Information cJune 1, 2023. Inf

Supervisor Mallory also detaSupervisor Mallory also det
sstated she would like to tated she would lik
support that project.support that projec

urther repurther rep
icaica



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Recently appointed Town of Prescott Valley Council Member Brenda Dickinson 
introduced herself, stating she has been appointed to the position vacated by Don 
Packard, and advised the Board that Lucy Leyva has been appointed to Roger Kinsinger's 
vacated Council position. 

B. 2022 Alarm Summary 

Chief Freitag reported that our overall call volume has increased, and as such, our 
Insurance Services Office (ISO) rating has taken a hit, and will continue to decline if we 
do not address our staffing and equipment issues. He also discussed changing Urban, 
Suburban and Rural Standards, and noted that we will be changing our approach to 
provide more accurate data.  

Chair Zurcher opened the floor to both Chino Valley and Central Yavapai Fire Board 
Members for questions. 

Director Reinhardt noted the disparity between how many auto-aid calls CAFMA runs 
versus how many calls the other entities run. Chief Freitag explained that auto-aid with 
Williamson Valley Fire District is for ISO purposes, and the number of auto-aid to 
Prescott is typical as Station 51 is housed there. 

Chief Rose presented the 2022 Alarm Summary. 

C. Letters from the Public and Board Recognition 

  There were no additional comments. 

4. REPORTS 

A. Board Member Reports 

Director Pickett reported that she volunteered at Arizona Wildland Academy, and heard 
many of positive comments about CAFMA. 

B. Division Reports 

Chief Freitag stated that he has been out engaging elected officials and community 
leaders regarding government bills that would cut funding to Fire Districts, i.e.SB1263 
would exempt some significant commercial properties. With one source of funding for 
Fire Districts, property taxes will increase. There is a cost to running any governmental 
entity, and other entities have multiple sources of revenue. Specifically, citizens are 
paying some sort of tax for those services. The challenge we face is that we have only 
property tax as a source of funding; this has been impacted greatly by Proposition 117, 
and could potentially continue to be impacted by legislation currently being reviewed. 

DRAFT
eded

will continwill co
also discussed chalso dis

will be changing our apwill be changi

ino Valley and Central Yavapai Fino Valley and Central Yavapai 

parity between how many autoween how
her entities run. Chief Freitag expher entities run. Chief Fr

trict is for ISO purposes, and the is for ISO purposes, and th
tation 51 is housed there.is housed there.

nted the 2022 Alarm Sumnted the 2022 Alarm Su mary.

m the Public and Board Recognitm the Public and Board Recogn

were no additional comments.o additional comments.

SS

Board Member ReportsBoard Member Rep

Director Pickett repoDirector Pickett rep
ny of positive ny of positive 

ee



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 
 

He noted that a Strategic Planning update has been emailed to the Board. 

In regards to attainable housing for current and future personnel, Chief Freitag noted 
that a letter of support for sustainable plans and projects was sent. He added that we 
will adopt an amendment to our adopted Fire Code clarifying to developers our 
requirements for approved county roads, and having a true means of egress for 
emergency use. The standard will be an all-weather surface, as dirt roads are no longer 
feasible.  

He added that he is expecting visits from Valley news agencies to discuss funding issues. 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

There were no public comments. 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Regular Session Minutes - February 27, 2023 

 B. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 

 C. Approve Fire Protection Agreements: Schuler 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Move: Rick Anderson  Second: Gayle Pickett  Status: Passed 
Yes: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle Pickett 

7. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Selection of Third Party 
Legal Counsel for Fee Schedule Matters 

Motion to go into Executive Session at 5:42 p.m. 

Move: Gayle Pickett  Second: Lorette Stewart  Status: Passed 
Yes: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle Pickett 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

Public session reconvened at 6:05 p.m. 

A. Discussion and Possible Selection of Third Party Legal Counsel for Fee Schedule Matters 

  Chair Zurcher provided direction to Attorney Cornelius to proceed with negotiations. 

DRAFTgencies to dgencie iscu

es - February 27, 202327, 20

ancial Statementsial Statements

tion Agreements: Schulerents: Schule

rove the Consent Agenda.rove the Consent Agenda

ck Anderson  Second: Gayle Pickk Anderson  Second: Gayle Pick
Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rircher, Lorette Stewart, Ri

O GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSIONO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SE

Legal Advice Pursuant to ALegal Advice Pursuant to A
Legal Counsel for Fee SLegal Counsel for Fe

tion to go intotion to go into

aylayl



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 

9. NEW BUSINESS

A. Discussion and Possible Approval to Purchase Four (4) Half-Ton Pickup Trucks, Not to
Exceed $240,000

Chief Rose reminded the Board that getting vehicles has been very difficult over the past
few years, and government contracts are limited. Chief Rose has found vehicles locally
for less than the quotes we received from our government contract providers.

He advised the Board that two of the proposed vehicles will go to Prevention, and two
will go to Operations. He added that if approved, these items will be taken out of the
Capital Plan for next year, and asked that the Board grant permission to utilize
contingency funds if necessary.

Chief Freitag mentioned that we still have $300,000 in Capital Budget funds remaining,
and this purchase would save $40,000.00 over what we planned for.

Motion to approve the purchase of four (4) Half-Ton Pickup Trucks, not to exceed
$240,000, utilizing contingency funds if necessary.

Move: Gayle Pickett  Second: Rick Anderson  Status: Passed
Yes: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle Pickett

B. Discussion and Possible Approval of Fiscal Year 2024 Capital Acquisition/Replacement
Schedule

Chief Rose presented the Fiscal Year 2024 Capital Acquisition Plan, and explained that
they moved as many things back as possible. We are scheduled to purchase two Type-1
engines next year; however, it will take 24-months or more to get them if ordered on
July 1. Also, they are now $1.1 million; there has been an industry-wide increase in cost.
He reminded the Board that approving the plan today does not obligate the Board to
approve the purchases in future fiscal years.

Chief Freitag added that he is not comfortable expending these funds with our current
Capital reserve funds, and stated that we will need to come up with a plan to build up
the Capital Plan. The scheduled purchase of apparatus has been left in the Capital Plan
to keep the issue in front of the Board.

Director Anderson asked what our needs will be, and what costs and wait-time will be in
two years if we're already looking at two plus years wait-time to receive new apparatus.
He stated he hopes we can come up with a long-term fix. Chief Freitag agreed with
Director Anderson, and stated that he hopes our supply chain challenges will start to

DRAFT
ntnt

will go to Prewill go
ese items will be takeese items w

ard grant permission to utiliard grant permissi

ve $300,000 in Capital Budget fuve $300,000 in Capital Budget fu
00.00 over what we planned for.00 over what we

se of four (4) Halfse of four (4) Half--Ton Pickup TruTon
ency funds if necessary.cy funds if necessary.

Second: Rick Anderson  Status: Pck Anderson  Status: 
, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Lorette Stewart, Rick A

nd Possible Approval of Fiscal Yend Possible Approval of Fisca

ef Rose presented the Fiscal Yeaef Rose presented t
they moved as many things backthey moved as many thin
enengines next year; however,year; however
July 1. Also, they are nowJuly 1. Also, they ar
He reminded the BoaHe reminded the Bo

prove the purchprove the purch

eitageitag



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Meeting 
March 27, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 

correct. He added that we are exploring ideas to extend the life of our apparatus and to 
put apparatus in place without having to purchase something new. 

Chair Zurcher confirmed that the engines currently at Stations 54 and 63 will be 
replaced with newer engines. 

Chief Rose provided additional information on several other upcoming vehicle 
replacements, and a new apparatus building at Station 59, using a contractor to erect 
the building, then having the completion work done in-house. 

Chair Zurcher inquired as to the status of the Station 63 remodel. Chief Rose provided 
an update of the work that has been completed and the work that is still ongoing. The 
living area will be addressed next.  

Motion to approve the FY 2024 Capital Acquisition and Replacement Schedule. 

Move: Lorette Stewart  Second: Rick Anderson  Status: Passed 
Yes: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle Pickett 

C. Discussion and Possible Direction to Staff Regarding Budget Update and Scheduling of
April Budget Work Study Session

Chair Zurcher confirmed this item has been scheduled.

10. ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn at 6:27 p.m.

Move: Gayle Pickett  Second: Rick Anderson  Status: Passed
Yes: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart, Rick Anderson, Gayle PickettDRAFT

ngng
use.use.

63 remodel. Chief R63 remod
and the workand the work that is still ongthat

Acquisition and Replacement SchAcquisition and Replacement Sch

ck Anderson  Status: Passedrson  Statu
wart, Rick Anderson, Gaywart, Rick Anderson, G le Picke

Direction to Staff Regarding Budgon to Staff Regarding Bud
udy Sessionn

nfirmed this item has been schenfirmed this item has b

djourn at 6:27 p.m.6:27 p.m.

Gayle Pickett  SecGayle Pickett  Second: Rick Anded: Rick 
: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart,: Matt Zurcher, Lorette Stewart,



MINUTES  
Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors

Executive Session
Monday, March 27, 2023, 5:00 pm - 6:00 pm

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, Administration, 8603 E. Eastridge Dr., 
Prescott Valley

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

Chair Zurcher called the Executive Session to order at 5:42 p.m.

Attorney Cornelius admonished the Board and those in attendance that matters discussed in
Executive Session are to be maintained as confidential and should not be discussed outside of
Executive Session. Executive Session is an opportunity for the Board to consult with legal
counsel regarding legal matters related to the function of the Agency and to request legal
advice. Executive Session is not an opportunity to poll the Board or to hold a vote.

2. OLD BUSINESS

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Selection of Third-Party
Legal Counsel for Fee Schedule Matters

Attorney Cornelius reminded the Board that this item is related to our ALS ride-ins. He
further stated that he has reached out to law firms Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A. and Papetti
Samuels Weiss McKirgan Law (PSWM Law). Both firms are reducing their hourly rate,
however, one is asking for significant retainer. The primary issue is to address with AMR
(Lifeline Ambulance) that their business model of not staffing appropriately is equal to
our taxpayers subsidizing their private company. With the Agency seeking its own
Certificate of Necessity (CON), it may be of benefit to pursue a debt collection case.

AMR has countered our fee schedule, suggesting they would pay the difference
between BLS and ALS. A third-party litigator would only advise on this topic. They can do
this without creating a potential conflict for the Agency and Attorney.

He believes there is good credibility with both firms: one is requiring a retainer, the
other isn't. One has previous experience dealing with our Agency but wants a retainer.
This is a big litigation involving constitutional issues and a very big private for-profit
company.

Chief Freitag noted that Kathy Steadman recommended Attorney Januszewski from
Burch & Cracchiolo due to his experience with Constitutional issues. For the Board's
consideration, this is a credible lawsuit, and could potentially help us with our CON
process.

DRAFT
thatthat m

d not be disd not 
e Board to consult we Board to

the Agency and to requesthe Agency and 
the Board or to hold a vote.the Board or to hold a v

8-431.03(A)(3) Regarding Selectio3(A)(3) Rega
Matters

ded the Board that this item is rethe Board that this item is 
has reached out to law firms Bued out to law firms B

Kirgan Law (PSWM Law). Both fiKirgan Law (PSWM Law). Both fi
s asking for significant retainer. Ts asking for significant re

mbulance) that their business mombulance) that their business m
payers subsidizing their private coers subsidizing their private co

ficate of Necessity (CON), it mayNecessity (CON), it may

AMR has countered our fee schAMR has countered our fe
between BLS and ALS. A thibetween BLS and ALS. A thi
this without creating a pthis without creatin

e believes there ie believes there 
isn't. Oneisn't. One

bigbig



Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
Executive Session 

March 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Attorney Cornelius stated that the $10,000 retainer does not concern him, due to the 
size of this matter and possible outcome. He added that this could potentially impact 
many other Fire Districts, as well. 

Chair Zurcher asked if it was possible to ask for other districts to pitch in. Chief Freitag 
answered that one agency he knows is following our model but has very limited funding. 
He added that the current Attorney General, Chris Mays, stated that if there's a problem 
with the gift clause, they want to know about it. Attorney Cornelius will be making a call 
on our behalf. 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

 The Executive Session was adjourned at 6:05 p.m. 

DRAFT
rnelrnel



The Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board of Directors have reviewed and 
approved the following financial documents to include Income Statements, Balance 
Sheets, and Bank Reconciliations with supporting documents, Revenue and 
Expenditure Graphs, and Cash Flow Projections in compliance with A.R.S. § 48-805, 
807.

CAFMA General Fund 

Fire Board Chairperson Date 

Fire Board Clerk Date 

Signature  indicating approval on next page 



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY
GENERAL FUND BANK RECONCILIATION MARCH, 2023

Reconciliation: Bank Statement Balance:
Beginning Balance: 10,168,610.10$ Balance Per Bank: 8,386,283.18$
Fire District Deposits: 70,756.75$ Outstanding Checks: (30,484.13)$

106,723.52$ Outstanding Deposits: -$
395,597.28$ Outstanding Payroll Direct Deposit: -$

Disbursements: (2,387,530.03)$
Other: American Express Incentive Rebate 1,641.43$
Other:  N/A -$

Ending Balance: 8,355,799.05$ Ending Balance: 8,355,799.05$

Difference Between Balances: -$ G/L Ending Balance: 8,355,799.05$

8,355,799.05$

Checks From Accounts Payable: 2,186,641.57$
Fire District Deposits: 70,756.75$ 200,888.46$
Interest Revenue: 106,723.52$
Transfer In:  CHINO Fire Authority Funding 88,689.78$ Total Checks and Charges: 2,387,530.03$
Transfer In:  CYFD Fire Authority Funding 306,907.50$

1,641.43$
Deposits From Accounts Receivable: 70,756.75$
Other:  GL JE for Fire Authority Funding 395,597.28$
Other:  Interest Revenue 106,723.52$

1,641.43$
Ending Balance: 574,718.98$ Ending Balance: 574,718.98$

Reconciliation Approved By:

Reconciliation Reviewed By:

Deposits Per Bank Statement: Bank Reconciliation Register:

Interest Revenue

Transfer In:  Fire Authority Funding

Reconciliation Prepared By:

Other:  Correction of Treasurer Deposit Error

Other: American Express Incentive Rebate

Other:  American Express Incentive Rebate

Karen Mauldin, Finance Manager

Scott Freitag, Fire Chief

David Tharp, Assistant Chief of Administration



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY  
Capital Projects Fund FY 22-23  
GL #1200

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/22 Fiscal Year 22-23 Beginning Balance 6,026,141.00$          

08/31/22 Interest Revenue $3,905.59 6,030,046.59$          

09/30/22 Interest Revenue $12,351.29 6,042,397.88$          

12/31/22 Interest Revenue $32,272.69 6,074,670.57$          

02/28/23 FY22 Transfer of Excess Funds From Gen Fund $1,425,101.00 7,499,771.57$          

03/31/23 Interest Revenue $56,345.28 7,556,116.85$          

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Capital Reserve Fund\Capital 
Reserve Fund FY 22-23



Ju
ly

Au
g.

Se
pt

.
O

ct
.

N
ov

.
De

c.
Ja

n.
Fe

b.
M

ar
ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

 
Ju

ne

47
4,

22
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
8,

92
1

   
   

   
 

43
,9

46
   

   
   

   
31

6,
71

3
   

   
   

  
11

,9
48

,7
64

   
   

 
3,

33
3,

79
8

   
   

2,
36

5,
83

0
   

  
1,

02
3,

90
3

   
   

  
39

5,
59

7
   

   
   

  
2,

40
6,

34
8

   
   

 
2,

40
6,

34
8

   
   

2,
40

6,
34

8
   

   

34
,2

45
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
32

3
   

   
   

   
  

5,
67

2
   

   
   

   
   

5,
55

3
   

   
   

   
   

2,
65

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

61
4

   
   

   
   

  
2,

58
7

   
   

   
   

 
88

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

43
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
76

,3
96

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

,9
61

   
   

   
   

58
,6

03
   

   
   

   
41

,8
96

   
   

   
   

 
38

,3
41

   
   

   
   

   
21

,8
56

   
   

   
  

57
,6

86
   

   
   

  
36

,7
05

   
   

   
   

 
37

,1
31

   
   

   
   

 
44

,5
19

   
   

   
   

44
,5

19
   

   
   

   
44

,5
19

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
62

6
   

   
   

   
  

26
,7

18
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,4

27
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
1,

42
2

   
   

   
  

4,
16

7
   

   
   

   
   

4,
16

7
   

   
   

   
  

4,
16

7
   

   
   

   
  

3,
81

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,9
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,3
92

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

05
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
52

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
73

,2
70

   
   

   
   

73
,2

70
   

   
   

   
73

,2
70

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
6,

66
7

   
   

   
 

16
6,

66
7

   
   

   
 

16
6,

66
7

   
   

   
 

28
8,

79
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

44
7,

47
1

   
   

   
 

47
,3

80
   

   
   

   
35

,7
91

   
   

   
   

 
83

9,
80

0
   

   
   

   
 

19
8,

50
6

   
   

   
3,

75
6

   
   

   
   

 
22

2,
43

5
   

   
   

  
(1

83
,6

61
)

   
   

   
 

50
,1

17
   

   
   

   
50

,1
17

   
   

   
   

50
,1

17
   

   
   

   
87

7,
47

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
63

5,
30

2
   

   
   

 
19

4,
21

9
   

   
   

 
39

9,
95

3
   

   
   

  
12

,8
29

,5
60

   
   

 
3,

58
9,

59
3

   
   

2,
42

9,
85

9
   

  
1,

28
6,

18
2

   
   

  
43

3,
44

6
   

   
   

  
2,

76
0,

08
6

   
   

 
2,

76
0,

08
6

   
   

2,
76

0,
08

6
   

   

1,
76

4,
46

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
53

7,
49

7
   

   
1,

50
2,

51
0

   
   

 
1,

85
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

85
5,

72
9

   
   

   
1,

92
3,

41
3

   
   

1,
72

5,
40

1
   

  
1,

50
1,

13
6

   
   

  
1,

54
8,

29
7

   
   

  
2,

18
2,

76
7

   
   

 
2,

18
2,

76
7

   
   

2,
18

2,
76

7
   

   
10

1,
77

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

3,
11

4
   

   
   

 
15

1,
48

2
   

   
   

 
26

2,
49

1
   

   
   

  
12

5,
17

2
   

   
   

   
 

19
1,

14
9

   
   

   
22

2,
80

2
   

   
  

23
1,

39
3

   
   

   
  

18
9,

24
3

   
   

   
  

23
7,

81
0

   
   

   
 

23
7,

81
0

   
   

   
 

23
7,

81
0

   
   

   
 

18
,6

11
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,1

30
   

   
   

   
17

,1
64

   
   

   
   

23
,4

21
   

   
   

   
 

14
,3

15
   

   
   

   
   

17
,8

78
   

   
   

  
21

,6
56

   
   

   
  

52
,9

00
   

   
   

   
 

23
,0

26
   

   
   

   
 

22
,4

67
   

   
   

   
22

,4
67

   
   

   
   

22
,4

67
   

   
   

   
22

1,
58

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
92

9
   

   
   

 
18

8,
33

3
   

   
   

 
26

1,
38

6
   

   
   

  
88

,0
59

   
   

   
   

   
19

8,
74

2
   

   
   

13
4,

43
7

   
   

  
13

8,
98

5
   

   
   

  
21

8,
20

1
   

   
   

  
25

2,
56

0
   

   
   

 
25

2,
56

0
   

   
   

 
25

2,
56

0
   

   
   

 
2,

63
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0,
06

8
   

   
   

 
60

,3
58

   
   

   
   

18
2,

38
8

   
   

   
  

26
3,

03
2

   
   

   
   

 
19

,2
43

   
   

   
  

25
,0

27
   

   
   

  
11

7,
89

4
   

   
   

  
18

8,
34

9
   

   
   

  
11

1,
32

4
   

   
   

 
11

1,
32

4
   

   
   

 
11

1,
32

4
   

   
   

 
2,

10
9,

06
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

25
2,

73
8

   
   

1,
91

9,
84

6
   

   
 

2,
58

4,
68

5
   

   
 

3,
34

6,
30

6
   

   
   

2,
35

0,
42

4
   

   
2,

12
9,

32
3

   
  

2,
04

2,
30

9
   

   
  

2,
16

7,
11

6
   

   
  

2,
80

6,
92

8
   

   
 

2,
80

6,
92

8
   

   
2,

80
6,

92
8

   
   

(1
,2

31
,5

97
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,6

17
,4

36
)

   
  

(1
,7

25
,6

27
)

   
  

(2
,1

84
,7

32
)

   
   

9,
48

3,
25

4
   

   
   

1,
23

9,
16

9
   

   
30

0,
53

6
   

   
  

(7
56

,1
27

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,7
33

,6
70

)
   

   
(4

6,
84

2)
   

   
   

  
(4

6,
84

2)
   

   
   

 
(4

6,
84

2)
   

   
   

 

38
1,

69
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,2

35
,7

37
)

   
  

(2
,9

61
,3

64
)

   
  

(5
,1

46
,0

96
)

   
   

4,
33

7,
15

8
   

   
   

5,
57

6,
32

7
   

   
5,

87
6,

86
3

   
  

5,
12

0,
73

6
   

   
  

3,
38

7,
06

6
   

   
  

1,
61

3,
29

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,1

40
)

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,7
29

,7
67

)
   

  
(3

,9
14

,4
99

)
   

   
5,

56
8,

75
5

   
   

   
6,

80
7,

92
4

   
   

7,
10

8,
46

0
   

  
6,

35
2,

33
3

   
   

  
4,

61
8,

66
3

   
   

  

6,
02

6,
14

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
03

0,
04

7
   

   
6,

04
2,

39
8

   
   

 
6,

04
2,

39
8

   
   

 
6,

04
2,

39
8

   
   

   
6,

07
4,

67
1

   
   

6,
07

4,
67

1
   

  
7,

49
9,

77
2

   
   

  
7,

55
6,

11
7

   
   

  

Gr
an

ts

Re
ve

nu
eT

ot
al

s:

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s:

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
 fr

om
 

CY
FD

/C
VF

D

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

M
isc

. N
on

 Le
vy

Am
bu

la
nc

e

20
22

 - 
20

23
 C

as
h 

Fl
ow

 b
y 

M
on

th
:  

M
AR

CH

Re
ve

nu
es

:

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

Fe
e 

fo
r S

er
vi

ce
s

Ac
tu

al
PR

O
JE

CT
ED

Pe
rs

on
ne

l C
os

ts
Su

pp
lie

s
Ut

ili
te

s Ca
pi

ta
l R

es
er

ve

(C
ar

ry
ov

er
)

Ca
sh

 B
al

an
ce

 

M
isc

. S
er

vi
ce

 E
xp

en
se

s
Ca

pi
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

To
ta

ls:

M
on

th
ly

 N
et

 C
as

h

Cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

Ne
t C

as
h



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
REVENUE GRAPH DATA

YTD
Revenue Budget %

Funding CHINO 88,690$ 5,575,524$      20.46
Funding CYFD 306,908$ 23,300,649$ 70.81
Fire Protection 1,430$               180,000$         0.33
Fleet -$                   40,000$ 0.00
CARTA 1,125$               41,000$           0.26 Training Classes / CPR Classes
Prevention 11,157$             81,730$           2.57 Plan Reviews/Special Evenuts/PAWUIC
Tech Services 9,336$               185,497$ 2.15 Cell Tower Lease/Contracting Revenue
Interest 181,422$ 50,000$           41.86 General Fund/Capital Reserve Fund
Off-District -$                   50,000$ 0.00
Purchasing Group 15,513$ 210,000$ 3.58
Ambulance Revenue -$                   2,000,000$      0.00
Other Income (182,135)$         1,406,635$ (42.02) * Amount includes deposit correction
TOTALS: 433,446$           33,121,035$    100.00   by Treasurer on 3/13/23 for $200,888.46.

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Revenue and Expense Graphs\03.2023 CAFMA GF Revenue and 
Expense Graphs\ Revenue Data



Fu
nd

in
g 

CH
IN

O
20

.4
6%

Fu
nd

in
g 

CY
FD

70
.8

1%

Fi
re

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n
.3

3%

CA
RT

A
.2

6%

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
2.

57
% Te

ch
 

Se
rv

ic
es

2.
15

%

In
te

re
st

41
.8

6%

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g 
Gr

ou
p

3.
58

%

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e
-4

2.
02

%

Fu
nd

in
g 

CH
IN

O

Fu
nd

in
g 

CY
FD

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

CA
RT

A

Pr
ev

en
tio

n

Te
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

s

In
te

re
st

Pu
rc

ha
sin

g 
Gr

ou
p

O
th

er
 In

co
m

e

CA
FM

A 
FY

 2
02

2
-2

02
3

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

Re
ve

nu
e

Pe
rio

d 
En

di
ng

 0
3/

31
/2

02
3



CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY 
EXPENSE GRAPH DATA

YTD
Expense Budget %

Personnel 1,548,297$ 26,193,200$ 71.45
Supplies 189,243$              2,853,724$           8.73
Services 241,227$              3,300,318$           11.13
Capital Outlay 188,349$              1,335,893$ 8.69
TOTAL: 2,167,116$           33,683,135$          100.00

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\Revenue and Expense 
Graphs\03.2023 CAFMA GF Revenue and Expense Graphs\Expense Data



Pe
rs

on
ne

l 
71

.4
5%

Su
pp

lie
s

8.
73

%

Se
rv

ic
es

11
.1

3%

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ut
la

y
8.

69
%

Pe
rs

on
ne

l

Su
pp

lie
s

Se
rv

ice
s

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ut
la

y

CA
FM

A 
FY

 2
02

2
-2

02
3

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Pe
rio

d 
En

di
ng

 0
3/

31
/2

02
3























































































































CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY  
PSPRS Contingency Reserve Fund FY 22-23  
 

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/22 Beginning Balance 2,000,000.00$          

09/30/22 Interest Revenue - September, 2022 $4,099.15 2,004,099.15$          

03/31/23 Interest Revenue - December, 2022 $10,703.97 2,014,803.12$          

03/31/23 Interest Revenue - March, 2023 $18,352.75 2,033,155.87$          

Z:\Administration\Finance\BANK RECONCILIATIONS\FY 22-23\Financials FY 22-23\FY 22-23\PSPRS Contingency Reserve 
Fund\PSPRS Contingency Reserve  Fund FY 21-22



SAMPLE 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Fire Protection Agreement is made effective _________, between the 
Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority, a political subdivision of the State of 
Arizona, hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY” and ______________________, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Applicant.”  The property under consideration is described 
as: 

Street Address:   
Mailing Address:  
Contact Phone Number:  
Yavapai County Assessor’s Parcel Number: 

IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) Purpose.  AGENCY shall provide fire protection and limited emergency
medical services under the terms of this Agreement. 

2) Duration and Renewal.  The effective term of this Agreement shall be from
__________ through June 30, 2019. The provisions of this Agreement shall renew 
automatically on July 1 of each year for consecutive one-year terms, unless either party 
pursues termination of the Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 11.  

3) Services Provided.  Fire Suppression, Emergency Rescue, and limited
Emergency Medical Services (collectively “Emergency Services”) will be provided under 
this Agreement. Unless the Incident Commander (senior AGENCY Officer present) 
requests additional help, AGENCY shall provide a standard response as determined by 
AGENCY dispatch protocols on each emergency call from the Applicant, subject to 
conditions below.  

It is intended that the Emergency Services provided under this Agreement shall 
be made available to the individuals residing at the property described in the Preamble 
above (the “Property”) or invitees of said residents (collectively, “Service Recipients”) in 
conjunction with the above-referenced Property irrespective of whether the Property is 
owner-occupied or leased. While the Applicant shall be responsible for all fees 
assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to invoice any actual 
Service Recipient for the services provided under this Agreement, according to the fee 
schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time to time. Said billing shall be in 
addition to the service fee charged under this Agreement. 

In providing services under this Agreement, AGENCY reserves the right to 
involve such other jurisdictions and EMS or suppression service providers as it deems 
necessary, consistent with its then current protocol. No assurances are made as to 

SAMPLE
______, , between the between the

sion of the State of ion of the State o
___________________, ___________

consideration is described ation is des

mberber: : 

UALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AG

Y shall provide fire protection and Y shall provide fire p
ms of this Agreementof this Agreement. . 

d Renewal.  The effective term of th The effective term of

MJune 30, 2019.June 30, 2019. The provisions of The provisions o
y 1 of each year for consecutive on1 of each year for consecutive o

on of the Agreement pursuant to Pathe Agreement pursuant to Pa

Services Provided.  Fire SuppreServices Provided.  Fire Suppr

AMcy Medical Services (collectively “Emy Medical Services (collecti
greementment. Unless the Incident CoUnless the Incident C

ests additional help, AGENCY shalitional help, AGENCY sha
GENCY dispatch protocols on eacpatch protocols on ea

conditions belowconditions below. . 

It is intended that the ed th
be made available to the inade available to th
above (the “Property”) obove (the “Property”) o
conjunction with the aconjunction with t
owner-occupied orowner-occupied 
assessed under sessed under

ervice Recipervice Recip
edule ad l

n t



 

 2 

whether, or to what extent, any such third party providers will respond. Applicant and 
Service Recipients may be responsible for any additional charges assessed by such 
other service providers. 
 
 Applicant herein acknowledges that AGENCY alone will determine its response 
to any given incident and that AGENCY alone will determine the number of units and 
personnel responding to such incident. Applicant further acknowledges that such 
response is subject to, among others and without limitation, any unforeseen 
circumstance, a major fire, other accidents, conflicting concurrent calls, reduction in 
force, road closure, poor road conditions, acts of God, or other situations in which there 
is a shortage of manpower or equipment. Applicant understands that the response time 
will likely be extended beyond that which might be regularly expected elsewhere within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY by reason of the distance to and isolation of 
the Applicant’s Property, the limited manpower available, access limitations, road 
conditions, and the other calls within AGENCY that may take priority, and Applicant 
hereby consents to the same. In addition, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that 
AGENCY’s response and effectiveness may be limited by a lack of adequate water 
supply.  
 
 Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in its sole discretion, 
give priority to other emergency calls either within AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries 
or outside AGENCY boundaries, potentially causing a delay in response time. Further, 
Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY may, in conjunction with any call to 
the Property, respond with insufficient equipment or manpower on occasion, either by 
reason of limited manpower, equipment availability, resource allocation, or by reason of 
the limited information having been made available to AGENCY in conjunction with the 
determination of the appropriate response.  
 

Applicant hereby acknowledges that no assurances are given or warranties 
made as to the response time or service level that will be offered, and agrees to hold 
the AGENCY harmless from and indemnify AGENCY for any and all damages which 
might be incurred by Applicant, Service Recipient, to Applicant’s Property or to any third 
party’s property or person, including that of any Service Recipient, by reason of 
extended response times, reduced equipment or manpower response, the decision to 
involve other service providers, failure to involve other jurisdictions or service providers, 
AGENCY’s decision to allocate resources elsewhere either inside or outside of 
AGENCY’s jurisdictional boundaries, the allocation of manpower or equipment, or other 
operational decisions which might result in delay or additional loss of life or property.  

 
Further, Applicant acknowledges and agrees that AGENCY shall not be liable for 

the negligent act or omission of any third party service provider. Applicant also agrees 
that AGENCY is under no obligation to transport any Service Recipient. Applicant 
acknowledges that AGENCY does not hold a Certificate of Necessity and does NOT 
provide ambulance or non-emergency transport services, and that transport services 
are typically provided through a third party. Applicant, Service Recipient, or both, shall 
be solely responsible for any and all expenses associated with any transport services 
utilized by either. 

SAMPLE
 its respoits res

ber of units anber of 
wledges that such ledges that such

on, any unforeseen n, any unforesee
rrent calls, reduction incalls, reduction

er situations in which there ns in which
tands that the response time response time 

larly expected elsewhere within arly expected elsewhere within 
of the distance to and isolation of f the distance to and isolation of 

available, access limitations, roaable, access limitations, roa
Y that may take priority, and Applicthat may take priority, and Ap

Applicant acknowledges and agreeApplicant acknowledges and agre
ay be limited by a lack of adequaay be limited by a lack of adequ

d agrees that AGENCY may, in itsagrees that AGENC
calls either within AGENCYcalls either within AG ’s jurisd

es, potentially causing a delay in repotentially causing a
d agrees that AGENCY may, in cons that AGENCY may

th insufficient equipment or manpont equipment or manp
power, equipment availability, resouower, equipment availability, resou

on having been made available to An having been made available t
he appropriate responsepropriate response. . 

cant hereby acknowledges that ncant hereby acknowledges that 
to the response time or service levo the response time or ser

GENCY harmless from and indemnCY harmless from and indem
ht be incurred urred by Applicant, Service Applicant, Servicey

arty’s property or person, includinrty or person, includi
extended response times, reducedextended response times, reduce
involve other service providers, involve other service p
AGENCYA ’s decision to allosion 
AGENCYCY’s jurisdictional bo’s jurisdictiona
operational decisions whperational decisions w

Further, Apper, Ap
the negligent actnegligent ac
hat AGENCYat AGENCY

nowledgl d
e a



 

 3 

 
 4) Response Time.  AGENCY shall make reasonable efforts to respond to 
Applicant’s emergency calls in a manner consistent with then-current agency protocol, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Applicant hereby 
acknowledges that response times are subject to variations due to existing weather 
conditions, road conditions, travel distance, traffic conditions, property identification, 
conflicting responses, equipment and manpower availability or allocation, and access to 
Applicant’s Property. Applicant acknowledges that because of the substantial distance 
involved, the minimum response time likely to be experienced by Applicant may exceed 
that of other recipients within the jurisdictional boundaries of AGENCY, and that no 
assurances are given by the AGENCY as to what ISO rating might apply to the 
Applicant’s Property.  
 
 5) Routing Information.  Applicant agrees that it shall provide AGENCY with 
current routing information to Applicant’s Property in a form acceptable to AGENCY Fire 
Chief, and will endeavor to inform all occupants of subject Property of the proper 
procedures to follow in case of fire.  
 
 6) Access.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that standard access 
roads sufficient to allow AGENCY fire equipment to reach the scenes of emergency 
calls are a significant factor in AGENCY’s ability to respond to emergency calls within a 
reasonable and expeditious time. If access roadways are not maintained by other public 
service agencies, the responsibility of providing and maintaining adequate access rests 
solely with Applicant. Applicant hereby agrees to hold AGENCY harmless from and to 
fully indemnify AGENCY for any liability or damages arising from any delay which might 
occur by reason of limited, inadequate or poorly maintained access, inadequate address 
or access description, or failure of Applicant or the Property to comply with applicable 
fire codes, building codes, zoning codes or recommendations or requirements made by 
any agency or AGENCY.  
 
 Applicant hereby grants to AGENCY the right of ingress and egress and to enter 
upon Applicant’s Property for purposes of conducting inspections to determine 
accessibility, and to observe any other matters which may affect AGENCY’s ability to 
provide services under this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring 
AGENCY to make any such inspection, or to require that AGENCY report to the 
Property owner in regard to any accessibility issues.  
 
 7) Compensation; Calculation; Payment.  As consideration for AGENCY’s 
provision of Emergency Services under this Agreement, Applicant shall pay to AGENCY 
a sum (the “Service Fee”) equal to the amount which would be paid if the Applicant’s 
Property was located in and taxable by the respective fire district (either the Central 
Yavapai Fire District or the Chino Valley Fire District) which would otherwise contract to 
provide such services to Applicant at that fire district’s then current tax rate, any 
applicable bond debt servicing rates, plus an administrative fee equal to $50.00 as 
modified from time to time. The Service Fee shall be owed to AGENCY by Applicant 
even if there is no current county tax assessed on the Property: by reason of the fact 
that the property is considered to be non-taxable; because no net assessed value has 

SAMPLE
ant hant 

sting weatting w
ty identificationy iden

tion, and access to on, and access to
e substantial distance substantial distance

y Applicant may exceed plicant may exc
of AGENCY, and that nCY, and th o 

O rating might apply to the apply to the 

es that it shall provide AGENCY witat it shall provide AGENCY wi
y in a form acceptable to AGENCY in a form acceptable to AGENC

pants of subject Property of the pants of subject Property of the 

by specifically acknowledges that staspecifically acknowledges that st
fire equipment to reach the scenefire equipment to rea

GENCYENCY’s ability to respond to emerbility to res
me. If access roadways are not mainf access roadways a

nsibility of providing and maintaininof providing and mai
plicant hereby agrees to hold AGEby agrees to hold AG

CY for any liability or damages arisinY for any liability or damages arisi
mited, inadequate or poorly maintaimited, inadequate or poorly main

ption, or failure of Applicant or the or failure of Applicant or the 
ding codes, zoning codes or recom, zoning codes or re

or AGENCYor A . 

Applicant hereby grants to AGENCYcant hereby grants to AGEN
n Applicant’s Property for purpoant’s Property for purpo

ccessibility, and to observe any othand to observe any ot
provide servicesprovide services under this Agreem under this Agree
AGENCY to make any such iAGENCY to make a
Property owner in regard to arega

7)7) Compensa CompensaSA
provision of Emergencprovision of Emer
a sum (the “Servica sum (the “Serv
Property was looperty was lo
Yavapai Fire Davapai Fire D

vide sud
abl



 

 4 

been established; or for any other reason. In that event, for the purpose of calculating 
the Service Fee to be paid by the Applicant, 10% of the full cash value as indicated by 
the county assessor’s office may be used as the assessed value, or if the full cash value 
is not available, the value of the property shall be established by way of appraisal 
conducted by a duly-licensed real estate appraiser provided by and solely at the cost of 
Applicant.  

 
If the property is appraised, the assessed value will be 10% of the appraisal. The 

then current fire district tax rate shall be applied to said property value, plus any then-
applicable bond debt service rates and an administrative fee equal to $50.00. If for 
some reason the current assessed value information is unavailable, then the Service 
Fee under this contract, as renewed, will be equal to the Service Fee charged for the 
immediately preceding service year, plus 10%, until such time as the current property 
value information becomes available, at which time the fee for the then-current year 
shall be recalculated and an adjustment to the Service Fee made. 
 
 Payment shall be due when this Agreement is signed; alternatively, payment 
arrangements may be approved in the sole discretion of AGENCY for quarterly 
payments with the first payment being due and payable simultaneous with the execution 
of this Agreement and thereafter on the first day of each subsequent quarter. Any 
payment not received within 30 days of the due date will be considered in default and 
may result in the termination of this Agreement. For the initial term of the Agreement, 
the parties agree that the fee shall be $«F17», but that such fee may be prorated 
(based on 12 months). 
 
 In the event of termination of this Agreement due to non-payment by Applicant of 
the agreed Service Fee within 30 days of due date, Applicant must reapply for 
Emergency Services pursuant to a new Agreement. In such event, the only option for 
payment under such new Agreement shall be for payment of all monies due in full at the 
time of execution of the new Agreement; other payment arrangements will only be 
considered upon renewal of the Agreement after completion of the initial term of the 
new Agreement.  
 
 The Service Fee paid to AGENCY by Applicant pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be considered earned by AGENCY when paid, and shall not be conditioned upon or 
modified by reason of the number of responses made by AGENCY to the Applicant’s 
property during the term of this Agreement. While Applicant shall be responsible for all 
Service Fees assessed under this Agreement, AGENCY also reserves the right to 
invoice any actual Service Recipients for the services provided under this Agreement 
according to the then-current fee schedule adopted by AGENCY, as amended from time 
to time. Said invoice shall be in addition to any Service Fee due under the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
 8) Insurance.  Applicant shall provide AGENCY with a current certificate of 
liability and hazard insurance, together with the name and address of insurance agent, 
name of insurance company providing coverage, and insurance policy number.  
 

SAMPLE
f appap

at the cosat the 

of the appraisal. The of the appraisal. The
ty value, plus any then-alue, plus any th

ee equal to $50.00. If for to $50.00.
navailable, then the Serviceen the 

he Service Fee charged for thee Service Fee charged for the
such time as the current property uch time as the current property 

me the fee for the then-current yeae fee for the then-current ye
ervice Fee made. rvice Fee made.

Agreement is signed; alternatively, greement is signed; alternatively,
he sole discretion of AGENCY foe sole discretion of AGENCY f

due and payable simultaneous withue and payable simultaneous with
on the first day of each subsequon the first day of e

days of the due date will be considays of the due date 
of this Agreementhis Agreement. For the initial teFor 

fee shall be all be $«F17»$«F , but that sucbut th

of termination of this Agreement duetermination of this Agreement d
vice Fee within 30 days of due ee within 30 days of due 

rvices pursuant to a new Agreemesuant to a new Agre
der such new Agreement shall be foder such new Agreement shall be f

xecution of the new Agreement; oecution of the new Agree
ered upon renewal of the Agreemeupon renewal of the Agree

Agreementent. . 

 The Service Fee paid to AGThe Service Fee paid to AG
be considered earned by AGENbe considered earned
modified by reason of the nuon of
property during the term ofrty during the term
Service Fees assessedService Fees assessed
invoice any actual Seinvoice any actua
according to the theaccording to the t
to time. Said invtime. Said inv
Agreement. greement. 

8)



 

 5 

 9) Waiver and Disclaimer of Liability.  Applicant agrees that AGENCY shall 
not be liable for any consequential damages to Applicant or any Service Recipient, 
including but not limited to any lost income or profits suffered by Applicant or any 
Service Recipient. In consideration of AGENCY’s agreement to provide services under 
the terms of this Agreement, Applicant agrees to hold AGENCY harmless and hereby 
releases AGENCY from and indemnifies AGENCY for any and all claims, demands, 
liability and causes of action that may arise as a result of AGENCY providing the 
services described herein. Applicant specifically agrees to hold AGENCY harmless 
from, in addition to the foregoing, any claims, demands, liability or causes of action 
which might arise out of AGENCY’s inability to provide, or any delay or limits in 
providing services, due in whole or in part to the conditions spelled out in Sections 3, 4, 
5, and 6 of this Agreement.  
 

10) No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be for the benefit of the 
parties named herein only and shall not be construed as having been entered into for 
the benefit of any third party.  

 
11) No Warranties.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a warranty by 

AGENCY against damages, whether to real property or personal property, which may 
result by way of fire, injury to a person, by accident or any other emergency occurring 
on Applicant’s Property.  

 
12) Limitation of Damages.  In the event of breach or non-performance by 

AGENCY, Applicant’s sole remedy shall be limited to the termination of this Agreement 
and refund of any unearned fees for that current contract year, the parties hereto having 
agreed that said fees are a reasonable amount of damages. This limitation of damages 
shall bind, without limitation, Service Recipients, family members, legal representatives, 
assigns and successors in interest of the Applicant. The waiver, hold harmless and 
indemnification provisions of this Agreement are for the benefit of AGENCY and shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.  
 
 13) Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by thirty (30) 
days’ written notice of termination delivered to the other party at these addresses:   
 

For AGENCY: 

Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
8603 E. Eastridge Drive 
Prescott Valley, AZ 86314 
 
For Applicant: 
 
______________ 

______________ 
SAMPLE

vices ces
s and hers and 

aims, demandsaims, d
NCY providing the NCY providing the
AGENCY harmless AGENCY harmles

lity or causes of action or causes of ac
or any delay or limits in elay or lim

s spelled out in Sections 3, 4, Sections 3, 4, 

greement will be for the benefit of thment will be for the benefit of th
strued as having been entered intotrued as having been entered i

herein shall be construed as a wherein shall be construed as a 
to real property or personal properreal property or personal prope

rson, by accident or any other emeson, by accident or a

Damages.s.    In the event of breachIn the event of b

M
e remedy shall be limited to the terhall be limited to the t

arned fees for that current contract yrned fees for that current contract 
es are a reasonable amount of damaare a reasonable amount of da

t limitation, Service Recipients, famation, Service Recipients, fam
uccessors in interest of the Applicin interest of the A

ion provisions of this Agreement aon provisions of this Agreement a
e termination of this Agreementtermination of this Agreem . 

13) Termination.  Either partyTermination.  Either partAays’ written notice of termination delotice of termination de

For AGENCY: For AGENCY: 

Central Arizona FireCentral Arizona 
8603 E. Eastridge8603 E. Eastridg
Prescott Valleyt Va

For Applicr Applic

___



 

 6 

 
 In the event of termination of this Agreement after the Applicant has paid the 
required payment due for that term, AGENCY shall return funds to the Applicant 
prorated on a per day basis for the period after the date of termination.  
  
 In the event Applicant sells the subject property or otherwise disposes of the 
same, this Agreement will terminate immediately upon notification from the Applicant of 
same; provided, however, that the indemnification requirements imposed on Applicant 
under this Agreement for incidents occurring during the term of this Agreement shall 
survive the termination hereof. Nothing herein shall prevent AGENCY from negotiating a 
new emergency services Agreement with the new owner of the subject property.  
 
 14) Cancellation Due to Conflict.  AGENCY may cancel this Agreement 
pursuant to the mandates of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 
15) Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, it shall be deemed severable; however, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
16) Fire Code Compliance.  Applicant hereby specifically acknowledges that 

all operations and activities, as well as new construction, and remodel of structures 
when applicable, will be in compliance with AGENCY’s adopted Fire Code.  

The undersigned warrants to AGENCY that the Applicant has the power to enter 
into this Agreement and that all necessary acts have been taken to enter into this 
Agreement.  
 
 

CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE & MEDICAL 
AUTHORITY 

APPLICANT 
 
 
By______________________________   
  Date Board Chair Date 
 
 
 
  ATTEST: 
 
By______________________________   
  Date  Board Clerk Date 
 
 

SAMPLE
e ApAp

se disposes of the e disposes of the
from the Applicant of rom the Applicant o

s imposed on Applicant posed on Applic
m of this Agreement shall Agreemen

t AGENCY from negotiating a m negotiating a 
of the subject propertyof the subject property. . 

ENCY may cancel this AgreemenY may cancel this Agreeme

on of this Agreement shall be hen of this Agreement shall be he
e, it shall be deemed severable; he, it shall be deemed severable; h

ot be affected and shall remain in be affected and shall remain in

pliance.  Applicant hereby specificace.  Applicant hereb

M
s, as well as new construction, anell as new constructi

n compliance with AGENCYe with AGENCY’’s adopts ado

ned warrants to AGENCY that the Aed warrants to AGENCY that th
ent and that all necessary acts hnd that all necessary acts h

PPLICANT 

By__________________________
  

______



610 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS
Created/Revised: 07/01/2016 / 02/27/2023
Reviewed: 02/27/2023

Page 1 of 3

I. PURPOSE

To provide a process by which the job performance of each member is 
appraised for the purposes of individual and organizational development and 
career advancement.

II. SCOPE

This policy applies to the performance review of all members with the 
exception of the Fire Chief.

III. POLICY

Evaluation Periods
New members and newly promoted members shall be evaluated on a 
quarterly basis as determined by their hire/promotion date for their initial 
probationary year. Members shall be evaluated annually thereafter.

Members who have reached longevity will continue to be evaluated annually 
as determined by their date of longevity eligibility.

Special Evaluation Periods
Any member may be placed on special evaluation at the discretion of the 
member's supervisor, or a chief officer, with the approval of the Fire Chief.
This may be due to discipline, leave of absence, illness, injury or other 
mitigating circumstances resulting in the employee being absent for 6 months 
or greater of an evaluation period. The decision to establish a special 
evaluation period and must be communicated clearly to the employee and 
supervisor(s) through written and acknowledged communication. Though the 
evaluation period may be changed, the anniversary date for employment or 
promotion may remain unchanged. If an adjusted evaluation period is 
determined, retroactive pay will not be calculated to the previous anniversary 
date.

Special evaluations mayshall be administered monthly or as determined by 
the supervisor and the Fire Chief.

All employees being promoted will receive an evaluation before being 
promoted unless the employee has received an evaluation within the past two 
months.

Administration of Evaluations
Administration of the evaluations is the responsibility of the immediate 
supervisor.



610 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS
Created/Revised: 07/01/2016 / 02/27/2023
Reviewed: 02/27/2023

Page 2 of 3

A draft of the evaluation, prior to delivering evaluation to employee, will be 
sent to immediate supervisor.  Upon approval by immediate supervisor, the 
evaluation will be returned to the first supervisor.  

First line supervisor (evaluator) Immediate supervisor
Immediate supervisor First line supervisor

Supervisors should deliver and forward all evaluations within seven days 
before the required evaluation date.

Supervisors should provide the employee being evaluated with the self 
evaluation sheet approximately four (4) weeks before the evaluation date.

Intermediate-level supervisors and division heads shall take action on each 
performance evaluation within two working days of receipt.  

Step Increases
Qualifications
An overall evaluation rating of 2.0 (progressing) for probationary employees
must be achieved at the annual evaluation to receive a merit increase.  All 
non-probationary employees must receive an overall evaluation rating above 
2.5 on the annual evaluation to receive a step increase. A rating of 1.0 in any 
category of the evaluation will result in ineligibility for a step increase, 
regardless of overall evaluation rating.

By signing the evaluation, intermediate supervisors shall indicate their 
recommendation of the merit raise to the Fire Chief.  

Approval
The Fire Chief shall approve all funds for pay increases based on the 
Agency's budget allocations.

Chief Officers or Division Supervisors shall approve merit increases for 
employees within their areas of responsibility.

Frequency
Members may receive a maximum of a one-step increase per annual 
evaluation. Merit increases will be effective the first day of the next full pay 
period following the member's evaluation date.

Evaluations for all positions shall be administered on approved forms.



610 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS
Created/Revised: 07/01/2016 / 02/27/2023
Reviewed: 02/27/2023

Page 3 of 3

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standards of Professional 
Qualifications and the adopted job descriptions shall be used as the initial
guideline for performance determination as follows:

NFPA 1001 Chapter 3 - Fire Fighter I: for firefighter positions.
NFPA 1002 Chapter 2 & 3: for engineer positions.
NFPA 1021 Chapter 2 - Fire Officer I: for company officer positions.
NFPA 1031 Chapter 4 - Fire Inspector I: for fire prevention positions.
NFPA 1021 Chapter 5 - Fire Officer IV: for chief officer positions.



PJ4001 Job Description: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Created/Revised: / 02/17/2015
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 1 of 5

Division: Fire Prevention
Reports To: Fire Marshal
FLSA Status: Nonexempt
Salary Level: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Classification: Uniform or Civilian

SUMMARY Under the direction of the Fire Marshal this position is responsible for the
supervision of the inspectors, development and implementation of fire and life safety 
programs, fire building inspections, fire investigations, plan review, public education, 
and code enforcement. This position serves as the Acting Fire Marshal when the Fire 
Marshal is unavailable.

This is a highly technical position that performs a wide range of fire prevention 
activities,. This position requires the ability to handle multiple projects and tasks 
simultaneously, and. The position involves considerable public contact, necessitating 
good communications skills. The nature of the work also requires that the person be 
able to exercise good judgment and a high degree of tact and diplomacy. This position 
requires being on-call for fire investigations after hours and on weekends in a divisional 
rotation.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES include the following: (Other duties 
may be assigned.)

Perform inspections on Inspect new construction and existing structures tenant 
improvements, construction and remodel sites for compliance with applicable Fire 
Code and prepare detailed reports.
Inspect and witness testing of all types of fixed fire protection systems to ensure 
compliance with plans and national standards.
Meet with the public, contractors, and prospective builders regarding fire code 
issues.
Conduct all plan reviews relating to for new subdivisions or developments, new 
building construction. or and modifications to existing buildings.
Conduct fire investigations as required, which may include photographic 
documentation and court testimony as required..
Investigate fire cause and origin, which includes detailed report writing, photographic 
documentation and court testimony as required.
Conduct fire and life safety business inspections as assigned.and prepare detailed 
discrepancy reports.
Investigate and respond to complaints regarding fire code violations and fire 
hazards.
Create and maintain data and detailed reports and records regarding plan reviews, 
construction inspections, fire business inspections, fire investigations, fire 
prevention, and public education activities.



PJ4001 Job Description: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Created/Revised: / 02/17/2015
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 2 of 5

Issue special use and hazardous materials permits as required by the applicable 
Fire Code.
Act in the capacity of Public Information Officer (PIO) when necessary.
Present fire education programs to schools and the public within the Agency’s
jurisdiction.
Work with other agencies in the development and delivery of fire and safety 
programs.
Make recommendations concerning fire education programs based on an analysis of
the conditions found with the Agency.
Research and develop new public education programs and activities as assigned.
Prepare public safety announcements and news releases relating to fire / life safety.
Support and participate in the agency’s community risk reduction and public 
education programs.
Interact with the public in a positive manner that exemplifies the Agency’s mission.
Attend all mandatory training and scheduled meetings for the assigned position.
Provide training and mentoring to peers within the all Fire Prevention Division
members.
Ability to appropriately prepare, manage, store and locate the written records of the 
DistrictAgency, especially those generated or received by the member, including, but 
not limited to, all books, papers, maps, photographs, emails, notes and all other 
written documents within the member’s job function; to ensure that all such records 
are kept in compliance with the records management requirements and public 
records obligations of the State of Arizona and the Agency and to be able to quickly 
locate and retrieve the same as part of a public records request.
Required to qualify for and maintain "Meets Standards" on member's evaluations.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES Supervises 1 - 6 inspectors. Carry out 
supervisory responsibilities in accordance with the organization’s policies and applicable 
laws: interview and train members; plan, assign, and direct work; appraise performance; 
reward and discipline members; address complaints, and resolve problems in a positive 
and productive manner.None

QUALIFICATIONS To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to 
perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are 
representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.

Extensive knowledge of:
Current applicable Fire Code and related NFPA Standards.
Fire suppression practices as they relate to fire code enforcement.
Building design and construction practices.



PJ4001 Job Description: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Created/Revised: / 02/17/2015
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 3 of 5

Fire inspection, fire investigation, and fire prevention practices.
Educational methods related to presenting programs of fire and life safety 
instruction.
The basic science of fire behavior.
Five years’ experience in a Fire Prevention Division as a Fire Inspector level 
employee.

Ability to:
Review and analyze fire data for program development.
Effectively work and interact with diverse groups within the community and the 
Agency.
Effectively present programs to groups of all sizes.
Demonstrate strong and effective communication skills.
Plan and administer internal mentoring/training programs.
Initiate and carry out programs in fire prevention.
Maintain effective working relationships with fellow members and the general public.
Read, write, understand, and follow verbal instructions.

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE High school diploma or general education degree 
(GED) required. College level courses in fire prevention, fire inspections, fire 
investigation, and related subjects preferred.

LANGUAGE SKILLS Read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, 
professional journals, technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Write reports, 
business correspondence, and procedure manuals. Effectively present information and 
respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general 
public.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS Calculate figures and amounts such as proportions, area, 
circumference and volume. Apply concepts of basic algebra and geometry.

REASONING ABILITY Solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete 
variables in situations where only limited standardization exists. Interpret a variety of 
instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

REQUIREMENTS
Must have a valid driver’s license and maintain a driving record that supports the 
ability to operate an Agency vehicle. Applicant must obtain a valid Arizona Driver’s 
License within six (6) months of employment.
Fire Arson Investigation Classes, Fire/Arson 1-4 through International Association of 
Arson Investigators preferred.
Fire Inspector 1 and 2 certificationcertifications through International Code Council 



PJ4001 Job Description: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Created/Revised: / 02/17/2015
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 4 of 5

Building construction knowledge and experience
International Code Council Plans Examiner
National Fire Academy-Technical Fire Prevention Class
Arizona State Fire Inspector I and II
Continuing education in the fire investigation field each year as available.
Fire Science Classes from Accredited College - i.e. Fire Code, Fire Investigation, 
Fire Protection Systems, Building Construction for Fire Protection
Completion of a technical math class
PIO Training or Experience
ICS 100, ICS 200 Certification
Knowledge of MS Office

RECOMMENDED
National Fire Academy- Fire Prevention: A Management Curriculum Class
Leadership I, II and III from NFA or State of Arizona
AA Degree from an accredited two-year college with classes in fire prevention 
and administration or equivalent education and experience

PHYSICAL DEMANDS The physical demands described here are representative of 
those that must be met by a member to successfully perform the essential functions of 
this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the member is regularly required to stand and 
walk; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; climb and 
balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, and crawl; talk, hear; taste, and smell. The member is 
occasionally required to sit. The member must regularly lift and/or move up to I00 
pounds and occasionally lift and/or move more than I00 pounds. Specific vision abilities 
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, 
depth perception, and ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT The work environment characteristics described here are 
representative of those a member encounters while performing the essential functions 
of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the member is occasionally exposed to wet 
and/or humid conditions, moving mechanical parts, high, precarious places, fumes and 
airborne particles, toxic and caustic chemicals, outside weather conditions, risk of 
electrical shock, explosives, risk of radiation, and vibration. The noise level in the work 
environment is usually moderate. The member is exposed to hazardous conditions 



PJ4001 Job Description: Assistant Fire MarshalFire Inspector III
Created/Revised: / 02/17/2015
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 5 of 5

including, but not limited to hostile fires, hazardous materials, and blood borne 
pathogens.

DISCLAIMER The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by the person assigned to this position. They are not 
intended to be an exhaustive list of responsibilities, duties, and skills required. This job 
description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
the member and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
the job requirements change.



PJ4001 Job Description: Fire Inspector III
Created/Revised: /TBD
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 1 of 4

Division: Fire Prevention
Reports To: Fire Marshal
FLSA Status: Nonexempt
Salary Level: Fire Inspector III
Classification: Uniform or Civilian

SUMMARY Under the direction of the Fire Marshal this position is responsible for the ,
building inspections, fire investigations, plan review, and code enforcement. This 
position serves as the Acting Fire Marshal when the Fire Marshal is unavailable.

This is a highly technical position that performs a wide range of fire prevention activities,
requires the ability to handle multiple projects and tasks simultaneously, and involves 
considerable public contact, necessitating good communication skills. The nature of the 
work also requires that the person be able to exercise good judgment and a high degree 
of tact and diplomacy. This position requires being on-call for fire investigations after 
hours and on weekends in a divisional rotation.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES include the following: (Other duties 
may be assigned.)

Perform inspections on new construction and existing structure tenant improvements
for compliance with applicable Fire Code.
Inspect and witness testing of all types of fixed fire protection systems to ensure 
compliance with plans and national standards.
Meet with the public, contractors, and prospective builders regarding fire code 
issues.
Conduct plan reviews for new subdivisions or developments, new building 
construction. and modifications to existing buildings.
Conduct fire investigations, which may include photographic documentation and 
court testimony as required.
Conduct business inspections as assigned.
Create and maintain detailed reports and records regarding plan reviews, 
construction inspections, business inspections, fire investigations, fire prevention 
and public education activities. Issue special use and hazardous materials permits 
as required by the applicable Fire Code.
Support and participate in the agency’s community risk reduction and public 
education programs.
Interact with the public in a positive manner that exemplifies the Agency’s mission.
Attend all mandatory training and scheduled meetings for the assigned position.
Provide training and mentoring to peers within the Fire Prevention Division.
Ability to appropriately prepare, manage, store and locate the written records of the 
Agency, especially those generated or received by the member, including, but not 



PJ4001 Job Description: Fire Inspector III
Created/Revised: /TBD
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 2 of 4

limited to, all books, papers, maps, photographs, emails, notes and all other written 
documents within the member’s job function; to ensure that all such records are kept 
in compliance with the records management requirements and public records 
obligations of the State of Arizona and the Agency and to be able to quickly locate 
and retrieve the same as part of a public records request.
Required to qualify for and maintain "Meets Standards" on member's evaluations.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES None

QUALIFICATIONS To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to 
perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are 
representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.

Extensive knowledge of:
Current applicable Fire Code and related NFPA Standards.
Fire suppression practices as they relate to fire code enforcement.
Building design and construction practices.
Fire inspection, fire investigation, and fire prevention practices.
Educational methods related to presenting programs of fire and life safety 
instruction.
The basic science of fire behavior.
Five years’ experience in a Fire Prevention Division as a Fire Inspector level 
employee.

Ability to:
Review and analyze fire data for program development.
Effectively work and interact with diverse groups within the community and the 
Agency.
Effectively present programs to groups of all sizes.
Demonstrate strong and effective communication skills.
Plan and administer internal mentoring/training programs.
Maintain effective working relationships with fellow members and the general public.
Read, write, understand, and follow verbal instructions.

EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE High school diploma or general education degree 
(GED) required. College level courses in fire prevention, fire inspections, and fire 
investigation, and related subjects preferred.

LANGUAGE SKILLS Read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, 
professional journals, technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Write reports, 



PJ4001 Job Description: Fire Inspector III
Created/Revised: /TBD
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 3 of 4

business correspondence, and procedure manuals. Effectively present information and 
respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general 
public.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS Calculate figures and amounts such as proportions, area, 
circumference and volume. Apply concepts of basic algebra and geometry.

REASONING ABILITY Solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete 
variables in situations where only limited standardization exists. Interpret a variety of 
instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

REQUIREMENTS
Must have a valid driver’s license and maintain a driving record that supports the 
ability to operate an Agency vehicle. Applicant must obtain a valid Arizona Driver’s 
License within six (6) months of employment.
Fire Arson Investigation Classes, Fire/Arson 1-4 through International Association of 
Arson Investigators preferred.
Fire Inspector 1 and 2 certifications through International Code Council 
Building construction knowledge and experience
International Code Council Plans Examiner
National Fire Academy-Technical Fire Prevention Class
Arizona State Fire Inspector I and II
Continuing education in the fire investigation field each year as available.
PIO Training or Experience
ICS 100, ICS 200 Certification
Knowledge of MS Office

RECOMMENDED
National Fire Academy- Fire Prevention: A Management Curriculum Class
Leadership I, II and III from NFA or State of Arizona
AA Degree from an accredited two-year college with classes in fire prevention 
and administration or equivalent education and experience

PHYSICAL DEMANDS The physical demands described here are representative of 
those that must be met by a member to successfully perform the essential functions of 
this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the member is regularly required to stand and 
walk; use hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms; climb and 
balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, and crawl; talk, hear; taste, and smell. The member is 
occasionally required to sit. The member must regularly lift and/or move up to I00 



PJ4001 Job Description: Fire Inspector III
Created/Revised: /TBD
Reviewed: 02/17/2015

Page 4 of 4

pounds and occasionally lift and/or move more than I00 pounds. Specific vision abilities 
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, 
depth perception, and ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT The work environment characteristics described here are 
representative of those a member encounters while performing the essential functions 
of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the member is occasionally exposed to wet 
and/or humid conditions, moving mechanical parts, high, precarious places, fumes and 
airborne particles, toxic and caustic chemicals, outside weather conditions, risk of 
electrical shock, explosives, risk of radiation, and vibration. The noise level in the work 
environment is usually moderate. The member is exposed to hazardous conditions 
including, but not limited to hostile fires, hazardous materials, and blood borne 
pathogens.

DISCLAIMER The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and 
level of work being performed by the person assigned to this position. They are not 
intended to be an exhaustive list of responsibilities, duties, and skills required. This job 
description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
the member and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
the job requirements change.




